ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 4, 2004
2:38 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 239
"An Act relating to the required nunber of days in a school
year."
- MOVED CSSB 239(HES) am QUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Sylvia J. Reynolds - Sol dotna
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

Dr. WIlliamH Doolittle - Fairbanks, Al aska
Tom J. Hawki ns - Anchor age

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Nursing

Janmes E. Jurrens - Juneau

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- May 4, 2004



- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion

Ki nberly Jockusch - Anchorage
Dr. Donna Peterson - Sol dotna

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Social Wrk Exam ners

Darrell Allman - Anchorage
M|l dred D. Townsend - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves

Sharon K. Evans - Pal ner
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Examiners in Optonetry

Dr. Jill Geering Matheson - Juneau
Dr. Jeff Gonnason - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Dispensing Opticians

Larry E. Harper - Anchorage
- CONFI RMATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Carol J. Schaeffer - Kotzebue
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves

Dana L. Brown - Fairbanks

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2-

May 4, 2004



SENATE BI LL NO. 219
"An Act relating to of fenses agai nst unborn children.™

- MOVED CSSB 219(JUD)am OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 434
"An Act relating to the practice of naturopathic nedicine; and
providing for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 239
SHORT TITLE: LENGTH OF SCHOOL TERM
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) DYSON

01/ 12/ 04 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (S) HES

02/ 04/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 04/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 04/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 20/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 20/ 04 (S -- Meeting Canceled --

02/ 23/ 04 (S) HES AT 2: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 23/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 23/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 25/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 25/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 239(HES) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 25/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 27/ 04 (S HES RPT CS 1DP 2NR 1AM SAME TI TLE
02/ 27/ 04 (S) DP: DYSON, NR GUESS, GREEN,

02/ 27/ 04 (S AM W LKEN

04/ 28/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 28/ 04 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 239( HES) AM

04/ 30/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 30/ 04 (H HES

05/ 04/ 04 (H HES AT 2: 30 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 219

SHORT TI TLE. OFFENSES AGAI NST UNBORN CHI LDREN
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) DYSON

05/ 11/ 03 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 11/ 03 (S) STA, JUD
04/ 06/ 04 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- May 4, 2004



04/ 06/ 04 (S) Moved SB 219 Qut of Conmittee

04/ 06/ 04 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 07/ 04 (S) STA RPT 2DP 1NR

04/ 07/ 04 (S DP: STEVENS G CONDERY; NR: STEDVAN
04/ 07/ 04 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

04/ 16/ 04 (S JUD RPT CS 3DP 1AM SAME TI TLE
04/ 16/ 04 (S DP: SEEKI NS, THERRI AULT, OGAN;

04/ 16/ 04 (S) AM FRENCH

04/ 16/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 16/ 04 (S Moved CSSB 219(JUD) Qut of Committee
04/ 16/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 19/ 04 (S FI' N REFERRAL \WAI VED

04/ 22/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 22/ 04 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 219(JUD) AM

04/ 30/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 30/ 04 (H) HES, JUD

05/ 04/ 04 (H) HES AT 2: 30 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 239, presented the bill to
the conm ttee and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

KEVI N SWEENEY, Speci al Assistant to the Conm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 239 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers

SYLVI A REYNOLDS, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnment and answered questions from the
menbers.

DR WLLIAM H DOOLI TTLE, Appoi ntee

to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Ment al
Health Trust Authority Board and answered questions from the
menbers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- May 4, 2004



TOM J. HAWKI NS, Appointee

to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Menta
Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

JAMES E. JURRENS, Appointee

to the Board of Nursing

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Nur si ng and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

KI MBERLY JOCKUSCH, Appoi ntee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teaching Practices Conmi ssion and answered questions from the
menbers.

DR. DONNA PETERSON, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teaching Practices Commi ssion and answered questions from the
menbers.

DARRELL ALLMAN, Appointee

to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Soci al Work Exam ners and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

M LDRED D. TOANSEND, Appoi ntee

to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Soci al Work Exam ners and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

SHARON EVANS, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves and answered questions from the
menbers.

DR JI LL GEERI NG MATHESON, Appoi ntee

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- May 4, 2004



to the Board of Examiners in Optonetry

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Exam ners in Optonetry and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

DR. JEFF GONNASQN, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Examiners in Optonetry

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Exam ners in Optonmetry and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

LARRY E. HARPER, Appointee

to the Board of Dispensing Opticians

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Di spensing Opticians and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

VES KELLER, Staff

to Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 219 and answered question
fromthe commttee.

KAREN VOSBURGH, Executive Director

Al aska Right to Life

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 219.

CAREN ROBI NSON

Al aska Wnen's Lobby

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 219 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-39, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal |l ed the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 2:38 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, Wl f, and Seaton were present at
the call to order. Representatives Coghill, Ci ssna, and Kapsner
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- May 4, 2004



SB 239- LENGTH OF SCHOOL TERM
Nunmber 0063

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO. 239, "An Act relating to the required nunber of
days in a school year."

Number 0109

SENATOR FRED DYSON, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB 239,
presented the bill to the comrittee and answered questions from
t he nenbers. He explained that he filed SB 239 at the request
of the [Anchorage] School District. This bill will allow sone
flexibility in the nunber of days a school is in session.

Senat or Dyson said that there has been a very successful charter
school which held classes four days per week. The students were
doing very well, the teachers and parents loved it, and the
school district had approved this plan. After the plan's
approval it was found that under state |aw school attendance is
required for 180 days so the district was not permtted to allow
it to go forward, he expl ained. The original bill was anended
on the floor from 150 days of attendance to equival ent hours,
Senator Dyson told the conmttee.

Number 0230

CHAIR WLSON announced that the conmttee is |ooking at CSSB
239( HES) am 23-LS1269\D. A.

SENATOR DYSON clarified that this version of the bill provides

that students can attend school Iess than 180 days. However

students in kindergarten through third grade nust have at | east
740 hours of instruction and study periods, and students
attending grades fourth through twelfth grades nust have 900
hours of instruction and study periods. He added that any

school that w shes to use this option nust first obtain approval
from its superintendent, school board, and then present it to
the comm ssioner of education. Senat or Dyson shared that
several of the boarding schools are very interested in this
option since it would allow the students to go hone nore often

He pointed out that there is a retroactive portion of the bil

[ page 2, lines 17 and 18] which addresses the problemthe schoo

that was approved by the Anchorage School District is
experiencing because it was found that the plan was not
currently legal under Al aska statute. He told the commttee the
students are now attending classes six days per week to nake up
for the lost tine. If this bill passes with the retroactive

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- May 4, 2004



effective day, then the school can cut back to a normal class
schedul e, he said. He added that the Legislative Legal and
Research Services has confirned that this retroactive clause is
fine.

Number 0375

CHAIR WLSON shared that she has to cousins who are teachers in
Col orado where this type of schedule has been inplenented as a

cost savings effort. There is a savings in utility costs, she
sai d. Chair WIson added that the teachers |ove the schedul e.
Some parents may not like it because it may require parents to

hire a babysitter while they work.

SENATOR DYSON agreed that there are savings. The districts that
his office has conmunicated with who have inplenented simlar
pl ans have saved nobney on transportation costs, janitorial and
cooki ng costs. He stated that as long as the students are
| earning what is necessary, he believes the state should allow
the schools some flexibility.

Number 0445

CHAI R W LSON announced for the record that Representative C ssna
has j oi ned the neeti ng.

Nunmber 0456

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the way he calculates a
seven-hour day, the school year could be down to 130 days of
schools for secondary schools, and 105 or 106 for primary
schools. He asked if it is Senator Dyson intention to see that
ki nd of reduction in attendance days.

SENATOR DYSON replied that no schools that he knows of have the
intention of having classes for seven hours. Once the time for
recesses, lunchtinme, and novenent between classes is renoved
from the class day, the nunber of class hours would be far |ess
hours than [seven hours], he added.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the school could go to a
| onger day and still only have classes 106 days per year.

CHAIR WLSON rem nded the nmenbers that any change in the class

schedul e nust be approved by the superintendent, the school
board, [and the comm ssioner of education]. She pointed out

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- May 4, 2004



that kids can only tolerate a limted nunber of hours in the
cl assroom

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what is the current nunber of hours
students attend cl asses.

CHAI R WLSON replied six hours.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification on the current
school year.

Nunmber 0567

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that «currently there are 180
days, and 170 of those days are contact days. The other 10 days
are for teacher in-services, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON acknowl edge that there are 170 contact
days per school year currently under |aw. This legislation
woul d al l owed for |onger hours. He surm sed that by increasing
the classroom tine by one hour per day students would attend
school 106 days for elenentary school and 130 days for secondary
school . He asked if this is what the sponsor wshed to
acconplish with this bill, since he notes that the original bil
only wanted the school termto be reduced to 150 days.

Number 0622

SENATOR DYSON pointed to page 2, line 8, and enphasized that
everything that takes place at school that is not instruction or
study periods would not be included in the hour count.

Nunmber 0644

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to page 2, line 8, where it says
"at least” 740 hours instruction, and on page 2, line 9, says
"at least” 900 hours of instruction. He said that on page 2,
line 13 [and 14], there is further clarification where it says
"students will receive the approxi mate educati on equivalent of a
180-day term" Representative Gatto commented that he does not
see where the bill dimnishes any contact tine, but sinply

allows the flexibility to rearrange the contact tine.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Senator Dyson if students currently
receive 740 hours in 170 contact days.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- May 4, 2004



SENATOR DYSON replied that he would not say that, but suggested

t hat is probably a good equivalent. He agreed with
Representative Gatto's comments. These hours are m ninuns and
were inserted into the bill to ensure nenbers of the other body
were confortable with the reduction in required school days.
Chair W son IS correct in her st at enent t hat t he
superi nt endent, school boar d, [and conm ssi oner of t he

Department of Education and Early Devel opnent] would have to
approve the change in school year, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked if representatives from the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent woul d speak to his
guestion on the current assunption that 740 hours of contact
time is provided in a 170-day school term

Number 0773

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF referred to page 2, line 8, where it refers
to 740 hours of instruction. He comented that at six hours per
day, that is 123 days.

Nunmber 0817

KEVI N SWEENEY, Special Assistant to the Conm ssioner, Ofice of
t he Conmm ssioner, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
testified on SB 239 and answered questions from the nenbers. He
explained that in statute a day in session is described as at
| east four hours of instruction for primary grades, and at | east
five hours for grades four through twelve. This time excludes
i nt erm ssi on. What was done is that 180 days was [nultiplied]
by four hours for the 740 hours for the primary grades and
multiplied by five hours for the 900 hours required for grades
four through twelve, he expl ai ned.

MR.  SWEENEY told the nenbers that he just spoke to the
commi ssioner on this bill, and explained that the departnent had
worked with Senator Dyson to insert the 140-day requirenent.
However, the bill was then changed on the floor of the senate
from days to hours. M. Sweeney enphasized that the
comm ssioner is confortable with this change. The comm ssi oner
will have a litnus test to ensure that the quality of the tine
provi des the equivalent of 180 days of education, he said. It
is assuned that the school board will be doing the sane thing

he added. M. Sweeney reiterated that the comm ssioner supports
the bill.

Number 0907

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- May 4, 2004



CHAIR WLSON said she is also confortable with the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that there is another inportant
benefit for some boarding schools. For exanple, Nenana Schoo
District could possibly offer an education to additional
children by condensing the nunber of days the existing student
enrol I ment attends school. There are fixed expenses for running
the school, but if the school had nore children enrolled the
school would receive nore incone as a result of the boarding
school . Representative Gatto said there is a real advantage in
having the opportunity to offer an education to nore students at
an existing site, rather than having a |limted enrollnent that
cannot be changed.

Nunber 0988
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Gatto if he neans

that by reducing the nunber of days in a term the school could
run two sets of students through the sane site.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that's correct. For exanple, one
group of student could go to school from Septenber to February
and a second set could go from February to August. It would

make it possible to have two entire classes go through the sane
site per year.

CHAI R W LSON acknow edge that sone states do just that.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report CSSB 239(HES)am  23-
LS1269\D. A, out of commttee with individual recommendations and
the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB
239(HES) am was reported out of the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

Number 1087

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
the confirmation of the governor's appointnents to boards. She
told the nenbers that the first appointment is Sylvia J.
Reynol ds to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnment. Chair
Wlson invited Ms. Reynolds to provide opening remarks, and
answer nenbers' questions.

Number 1133

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- May 4, 2004



SYLVI A REYNOLDS, Appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, testified as appointee to the Board of Education
and Early Devel opment and answered questions from the nenbers.
She told the nmenbers that she believes she brings a perspective
to the board on elenentary and secondary education from her

years of experience in the trenches. Ms. Reynol ds shared that
she has taught in None and Juneau, and is currently teaching in
Kenai . That experience adds to her perspective on education

i ssues, she said.
Nunber 1203

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF t hanked Ms. Reynolds for her wllingness to
serve the state.

Number 1224

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that Ms. Reynol ds was nanmed principa
of the year in 2000. He asked her to comment on the particular
achi evenment that nerited that honor.

M5. REYNOLDS responded that she does not attribute anything she
did in being honored with that title. She said that it was the
peopl e she worked with who really should be honored. There were
quality people at Soldotna Hi gh School. For exanple, one of the
staff was a M|l ken Award w nner. It was believed that it was
really inportant to keep parents in the loop so a homework
hotline was devel oped. The students hated it, but the parents
and teachers loved it. She explained that there was easy access
between teachers and parents through e-mail, so the school
received a national technol ogy award whi ch hel ped.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Reynolds to comrent on the Hi gh
School Qualifying Exam (HSGQE) and the No Child Left Behind Act
(NCLB) . He asked if she believes NCLB will still be in effect
in three years.

M5. REYNOLDS commented that those are |oaded questions. She
told the nenbers that she believes the HSGXE has been watered
down. It is inmportant to have goals and standards in place, she
said, but she also believes that as an educator there are many
ways to get there. There are many ways of neasuring a child's
intelligence. M. Reynolds told the commttee that NCLB is kind
of a love/hate relationshinp. She said she likes it from the
standpoint that it makes teachers accountable for what they are
doing in the classroom The assessnents that are in place are

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- May 4, 2004



driving reconstruction in the classroom Teachers are being
nore reflective and thoughtful in what is being done wth
students so that they are successful, she said. Ms. Reynol ds
told the nenbers that this is not the answer to everything. As
an educator she feels frustrated because she sees a lot of
testing taking place and if a teacher is doing the job they are
suppose to be doing it robs instructional tine. In closing she
said that she would Iike to see many versions of the HSGQE.

Nunmber 1399

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noved that the House Health, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Sylvia J. Reynolds, the governor's appointee
to the State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent, and to
reconmend that her nom nation be forwarded to a joint session
for consideration. There being no objection, Sylvia J.
Reynol ds' nomination will be forwarded to the joint session for
consi derati on.

Nunber 1420

CHAIR WLSON announced for the record that Representative
Kapsner has joined the neeting.

CHAIR WLSON asked if Carol (Bunny) J. Schaeffer is available to
testify. Since there was no response Chair WIson noved on to
t he next appoi nt ee.

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Dr.
Wlliam H Doolittle, to Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority
Board of Trustees. Chair WIson invited Dr. Doolittle to
provi de openi ng remarks, and answer nenbers' questions.

Nunmber 1536

DR, WLLIAM H DOCLI TTLE, Appointee to the Al aska Mental Health
Trust Authority Board of Trustees, testified as appointee to the
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees and
answered questions from the nenbers. He told the nenbers that
he has practiced in internal nedicine for 40 years and during
that time he becanme acutely aware of the problens of access to

mental health care. He explained that there has been a
di sconnect between primary care practitioners and the help that
is available to patients needing nental health care. Dr

Doolittle told the commttee that the Al aska Mental Health Trusi
Authority has a major task in bringing about the best for the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- May 4, 2004



nost [patients]. He said he has sone insights in how that m ght
be acconpl i shed.

Nunmber 1539

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA comrented that one problem she believes
the state is experiencing is a |ack of perspective of the |arger
view of nental health issues. She asked Dr. Doolittle what
experience he has in working with providers across the state.

DR. DOCLI TTLE asked if she is referring specifically to nenta
heal t h experi ence.

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA replied that nental health is part of
heal t h i ssues.

DR. DOCLITTLE told the nenbers that communication across that
state has been very difficult. He shared that sone years ago he
participated in a program that was to integrate sone of the
efforts of physicians across the state. For three nonths he
traveled to every comrunity in the state, and observed the
differences and becane acutely aware of the difficulty in
conmmuni cat i on. He spent tine determning the nechanisns by
whi ch that communication mght be acconplished, he said. Wword
of mouth was the best way. That can take place in a nunber of
foruns, but it cannot be repeated too many tines, he added. Dr.
Doolittle told the nenbers that it nust be succinct, focused,
and a nessage that will help.

Number 1671

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Dr. WIliam H Doolittle, the governor's
appointee to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of
Trustees, and to reconmend that his nom nation be forwarded to a
joint session for consideration. There being no objection, Dr.
Wlliam H Doolittle's nomnation was forwarded to the joint
session for consideration.

Number 1699
CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Tom
J. Hawkins, to Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of

Tr ust ees. Chair Wlson invited M. Hawkins to provide opening
remar ks, and answer nenbers' questi ons.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- May 4, 2004



TOM J. HAWKINS, Appointee to the Alaska Mental Health Trust
Authority Board of Trustees, testified as appointee to the
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees and
answered questions from the nenbers. M. Hawkins told the
menbers that he believes the work of the Alaska Mental Health
Trust Authority is very inportant, and requires a |lot of energy

to be effective. He said he chaired the resource nmanagenent
commttee of the trust and has been very active over the past
four years. In summary, M. Hawkins told the nenbers that he

| ooks forward to bringing his resource and asset managenent
experience to benefit these beneficiaries.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Tom J. Hawkins, the governor's appointee to
the Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees, and
to reconmmend that his nom nation be forwarded to a joint session
for consideration. There being no objection, Tom J. Hawkins'
nom nati on was forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Nunber 1784

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnment is Janes
E. Jurrens, to Board of Nursing. Chair WIlson invited M.
Jurrens to provide opening renmarks, and answer nenbers’
questi ons.

JAMES E. JURRENS, Appointee to the Board of Nursing, testified
as appointee to the Board of Nursing and answered questions from
t he nenbers. He told the nenbers that he has served on the
board for the last year to fill a vacated position. M. Jurrens
expl ained that he has represented nursing and has served in the
trenches in hospital settings. He added that he is from Juneau
and represents Sout heast Al aska.

Nunber 1826

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the dates of M. Jurrens
academ c record. He inquired if the dates were earlier than
1998.

MR. JURRENS responded that all of his academcs were much
earlier than that. He explained that he finished nursing schoo
in 1985 and has been in the field of nursing since then. He
cormented that there is always on-going work that nust be done
to keep nursing credentials, but that is not in a university
setting.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- May 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if he is «currently enployed at
Bartl ett Regional Hospital.

MR. JURRENS said yes. He told the nenbers that he is the
surgi cal service manager there.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA noted that M. Jurrens served as a
traveling nurse several tinmes out of state. She told M.
Jurrens that she appreciates that he has served on the board for
a year and asked him to coment on his views in terns of the
nursi ng needs of the state as a whol e.

MR. JURRENS commented that his wife is also a nurse. He told
the nenbers that he spent eight nonths as a traveling nurse
working in Fairbanks in the operating room and has worked the
| ast three years in Juneau. M. Jurrens told the nenbers that
his service for the last year on the Board of Nursing has nade
him aware of the need for nursing in the Bush areas. One of the
i ssues the board worked on was dealing with the delegation to
the unlicensed assistant personnel. At the end of the April
that project was finished and has been sent to the Departnent of
Law. The board is hopeful it wll be approved, he added. Hi s
service on the board for the last year has provided himwth a
view of how varied the nursing needs are across the state, from
Provi dence Hospital to the snmaller comunities such as Bethel
and Barrow, he said.

Nunmber 1983

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Janmes E. Jurrens, the governor's appointee to
the Board of Nursing, and to recommend that his nom nation be
forwarded to a joint session for consideration. There being no
objection, Janmes E. Jurrens' nomnation was forwarded to the
joint session for consideration.

Number 2008

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent 1is
Kinmberly Jockusch, to the Professional Teaching Practices
Commi ssi on. Chair WIlson invited M. Jockusch to provide
openi ng remarks, and answer nenbers' questions.

KI MBERLY JOCKUSCH, Appointee to the Professional Teachi ng
Practices Commi ssion, testified as appointee to the Professional

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- May 4, 2004



Teaching Practices Conmi ssion and answered questions from the

menbers. She told the nenbers that she has worked for the
Prof essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssion this past year. \%
Jockusch said that she has always believed that it is critical
for educators to nonitor their own profession. This past year

has been a very val uabl e experience in doing that, she added.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that her resune reflects a |ot of
novenent within the Anchorage School District. He asked her to
comment on that.

Nunber 2075

M5. JOCKUSCH explained that early in her career she was subject
to involuntary transfers. She said that as her famly situation
changed she went from a full-time position to a half-tine
position, and then as her famly grew, she returned to a full-
time position. Recently she changed schools to have an
opportunity to teach a two-year kindergarten to first grade
posi tion.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if any of the involuntary transfers
were a result of an action against her.

M5. JOCKUSCH replied no. She told the nenbers that the
involuntary transfers early in her career were a result of
reductions in staffing and reassignnent to other teaching
positions in the district.

Number 2125

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Kinberly Jockusch, the governor's appointee to
t he Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion, and to recommend
that her nomnation be forwarded to a joint session for
consi derati on. There being no objection, Kinberly Jockusch's
nom nati on was forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Nunber 2211

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Dr.
Donna  Peterson, to the Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices
Comm ssi on. Chair WIlson invited Dr. Peterson to provide

openi ng remar ks, and answer nenbers' questions.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- May 4, 2004



DR. DONNA PETERSQN, Appointee to the Professional Teaching
Practices Conmmi ssion, testified as appointee to the Professional
Teaching Practices Conmmi ssion and answered questions from the
menbers. She told the nmenbers that she has served for three
years on the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion. Dr.
Peterson said it has been a |earning experience and believes it
IS a very necessary conmttee in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF told the nenbers that Dr. Peterson is the
superintendent of schools for the Kenai Peninsula Borough School
District. He asked if there are 1,800 enployees working for the
school district, rather than 1, 700.

DR. PETERSON replied that there are about 700 certified staff,
500 classified staff, and there are school board nmenbers and
substitute teachers. Wen the district counted the W2 fornms at
the end of the year 2,400 was the top nunber, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF told the comrittee that Dr. Peterson is an
excel | ent superi nt endent and hi ghl y reconmends her for
appoi ntnent to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that sonme of her certificates expire
in 2004 and asked if she will be getting themrenewed.

DR. PETERSON responded that she conpleted the three credits that
were required for one certificate so that certificate has
al ready been renewed. She added that she has type B certificate
that expires in Decenber and she already has plans in place for
conpleting that renewal. She explained that certificate hol ders
are only allowed to apply for renewal six nonths prior to
expiration.

CHAIR WLSON said she knows Dr. Peterson personally and knows
she is doing an excellent job.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noved that the House Health, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Dr. Donna Peterson, the governor's appointee
to the Professional Teaching Practices Commssion, and to
reconmend that her nomnation be forwarded to a joint session
for consideration. There being no objection, Dr. Donna
Peterson's nomnation was forwarded to the joint session for
consi deration.

Nunber 2315

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- May 4, 2004



CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is
Darrell Allman, to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners. Chair
Wlson invited M. Allnmn to provide opening remarks, and answer
menbers' questions.

DARRELL ALLMAN, Appointee to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners,
testified as appointee to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners and
answered questions fromthe nmenbers. He told the commttee that
he | ooks forward to serving on the board because he has reached
a place in his professional developnent that it is tinme for him
to give sonmething back to his profession. This is one way he
hopes to serve, he said.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA noted that M. Allnmn has significant
experience with the Southcentral Foundation. She said she knows
there has been huge growh in traditional and conventional
services to Rural Al aska. She asked M. Allman about the work
he has done there.

TAPE 04-39, SIDE B
Number 2352

MR. ALLMAN agreed that the Southcentral Foundati on has continued
to grow since he joined the organization. He explained that the
prograns that he was involved with dealt wth the severely
mentally ill. A lot of the clients are not able to have their
needs net out in the villages of Rural Al aska so nmany of these
peopl e are brought to Anchorage for services. M. Al man added
that the D vision of Behavioral Health is trying to inprove the
delivery systemin rural comrunities.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that part of his education includes
bi omedi cal science fellowship in substance abuse from the U S
Air Force Medical Center. He asked M. Allmn if he believes
the increase in the price of tobacco will reduce the rate of
consunption of tobacco products. Representative Gatto asked for
him to address the question in two parts, one for teenagers and
the other for non-teenagers.

Nunmber 2295

MR. ALLMAN responded that he is a non-snoker, but his brother
snoked for 37 years. His brother use to say that when the cost
reaches $2 per pack he will quit. Wien the price hit the $4
mar k he nmade a concerted effort to stop and was successful. M.
Allman said that he believes teenagers will seek out things to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- May 4, 2004



experiment with no matter what the cost. He said he does not

believe raising the price wll deter teenagers from trying
cigarettes. However, it nmmy decrease the amount of tines
teenagers experinment with it. Wth respect to adults, he added

that the economc factor hits all of us.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Allman to comment on the
bi onedical research he read on the beneficial influence of
i ncreased costs on incidence of tobacco use.

MR. ALLMAN replied that he cannot speak to that point. He told
the committee that his specific training was primarily in
al cohol and drug addiction. Ni cotine addiction was not the
focus at that time, he commented.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved that the House Health, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Darrell A lman, the governor's appointee to
the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners, and to reconmend that his
nom nation be forwarded to a joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, Darrell Almn's nomnation was
forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent 1is
Mldred D. Townsend, to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners.
Chair Wlson invited Ms. Townsend to provide opening renarks,
and answer nenbers' questions.

M LDRED D. TOAMNSEND, Appointee to the Board of Social Wrk
Exam ners, testified as appointee to the Board of Social Wrk
Exam ners and answered questions fromthe nenbers. She told the
commttee that she believes her experience working for the
Muni cipality of Anchorage for five years as a counsel or woul d be
val uable to the board.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said she knows that Ms. Townsend has nany
years of experience beyond the paid position at the Miunicipality
of Anchorage and has been active in the comunity. She asked
Ms. Townsend to speak to the broader issues facing the state.

M5. TOMWNSEND told the nenbers that she has a great concern for
the senior and handi capped popul ations, especially with respect
to transportation. However, the greatest priority is housing
for these popul ati ons, she said.

Nunber 2037

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- May 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ewed t he
qualifications of MIldred D. Townsend, the governor's appointee
to the Board of Social Wrk Exam ners, and to recommend that her
nom nation be forwarded to a joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, MIdred D. Townsend' s nom nation was
forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Nunber 2010

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is
Sharon Evans, to the Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves.
Chair Wlson invited Ms. Evans to provide opening renmarks, and
answer nenbers' questions.

SHARON EVANS, Appointee to the Board of Certified Direct-Entry
M dwi ves, testified as appointee to the Board of Certified
Direct-Entry Mdw ves and answered questions from the nenbers.
She told the nenbers that she believes her experience as a
mdw fe and service on the board will be helpful to the board

M dwi ves have a lot to offer Al aska, she said.

CHAI R W LSON asked her how many babi es she has delivered.

M5. EVANS said she stopped counting about 10 years ago at 600
babi es.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if delivering 600 babies would
qualify her to serve on this board.

M5. EVANS replied that she is aware of the qualifications that
woul d be beneficial to the licensing board for m dw ves.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Evans' experience would |ead
her to inprove or be concerned about mdw fe qualifications. He
asked her to comment on her focus with respect to m dw ves.

M5. EVANS responded that she believes the regulations wth
respect to mdwi ves be workable and fair, but also need to
protect the public from bad practices.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is an organization that
opposes the m dw fe profession.

M5. EVANS told the nenbers that mdw fery is highly political
There have been conflicts wth the Anerican College of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- May 4, 2004



Nurse/ M dwi ves and physicians specializing in obstetrics and
gynecol ogy (OB/ GYN), but there are also allies, she comrented.

Nunmber 1889

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Sharon Evans, the governor's appointee to the
Board of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves, and to recommend that
her nom nati on be forwarded to a joint session for
consi derati on. There being no objection, Sharon Evans'
nom nation was forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Number 1850

CHAIR WLSON told the nmenbers that the next appointnment is Dana
Brown, to the Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves. She
noted that Ms. Brown is not available to testify at this tine.

Nunber 1825

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Dr.
Jill Ceering Matheson, to the Board of Examners in Optonetry.
Chair WIlson invited Dr. Geering Mtheson to provide opening
remar ks, and answer nenbers' questions.

DR JILL GEERI NG MATHESON, Appointee to the Board of Exam ners
in Optonetry, testified as appointee to the Board of Exam ners
in Optonmetry and answered questions from the nenbers. She told
the nenbers that she has been practicing in Alaska for 12 years
and believes she is at a point in her career where she can serve
on the board of optonetry. Dr. Geering Matheson said it is
important to nonitor the profession and keep standards high.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if she sees a conflict between
opht hal nol ogi sts and optonetrists.

DR. GEERI NG MATHESON replied that she is sure the conmttee is
aware of the conflict that exists because optonetrists would
like to expand their practice to prescribe sonme oral
medi cat i ons. There are ophthal nol ogi sts that oppose that nove,
she said. Dr. GCeering Matheson added that there are many
optonetrists and ophthal nologist who work side-by-side on a
dai |l y basis.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what her position would be on that
i ssue as a nenber of the Board of Examiners in Optonetry.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- May 4, 2004



DR. GEERI NG MATHESON responded that as an optonetrist she is
very supportive of the expansion into prescribing oral
medi cati ons and supports current |egislation. However, as a
board nenber she would have to stay on neutral ground on that
i ssue, she comment ed.

Nunmber 1734

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Dr. Jill Ceering Matheson, the governor's

appointee to the Board of Examiners in Optonetry, and to
reconmend that her nomnation be forwarded to a joint session
for consideration. There being no objection, Dr. Jill GCeering
Mat heson's nomination was forwarded to the joint session for
consi deration.

Number 1705

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Dr.
Jeff Gonnason, to the Board of Examiners in Optonetry. Chair
Wlson invited Dr. Gonnason to provide opening remarks, and
answer nenbers' questions.

DR.  JEFF GONNASON, Appointee to the Board of Examners in
Optonetry, testified as appointee to the Board of Examiners in
Optonetry and answered questions from the nenbers. He told the
menbers that he has previously served on the board from 1985 to
1989.

CHAI R W LSON asked what ki nds of issues cone before the board.

DR. GONNASON replied that the board's main intent is to provide
for the public's protection by assuring that |I|icensees are
conpetent and qualified. The board presides over the |icensure
exam nations and al so has hearings on conpl aints agai nst any of
the |icensee.

Number 1673
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what his views are on the debate
between optonetrists and ophthal nol ogi sts. She asked if he

woul d be taking a stand on the issue as a board nenber.

DR. GONNASON responded that the board has always provided an
official statement for or against legislation that affects the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- May 4, 2004



profession. The board has always voted to support updating the
Al aska optonetry | aws. He explained that in statute
optonetrists are required to adhere to the latest and newest
education and training that is avail able. Across the country
since 1970 optonetrists have been trained at the sane |evel as
dentists and physicians, at the doctorate |evel. Many of the
states have taken a long tine to update their statutes to all ow
optonetrist to practice at their highest level of training, Dr.

Gonnason sai d. Currently Hawaii just passed a |aw allow ng
optonetrists to prescribe oral nedications, the governor vetoed
it, and the legislature over rode that veto. He told the

commttee that Alaska is the only state west of M ssissippi that
does not allow optonetrist to use nore than just eye drops. Dr.
Gonnason summarized that the board wll pass a resolution
whether or not it supports expansion to prescribe sone oral
medi cations. As a board nmenber his duty would be to ensure that
anyone doing procedures or prescribing nedication is qualified
to do so, Dr. CGonnason said.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked Dr. Gonnason if he would clarify
whet her he would be pronoting optonetrists expanded privil eges
to prescribe oral nedication

Number 1560

DR. GONNASON replied that he would not be pronoting it. He
explained that every tine a bill is drafted in the |egislature
that affects the profession, it will be discussed and the board
wll pass a resolution as to whether it supports or opposes any
| egi sl ati on. The current board is on record as unaninously

supporting current legislation [HB 306] before the House Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Dr. Jeff Gonnason, the governor's appointee to
the Board of Examners in Optonetry, and to recommend that his
nom nation be forwarded to a joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, Dr. Jeff Gonnason's nom nation was
forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Nunber 1497
CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that the next appointnent is Larry
E. Harper, to the Board of D spensing Opticians. Chair W1 son

invited M. Harper to provide opening remarks, and answer
menbers' questions.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- May 4, 2004



LARRY E. HARPER, Appointee to the Board of D spensing Opticians,
testified as appointee to the Board of D spensing Opticians and
answered questions from the nenbers. He told the nenbers that
he has served on the board for the |ast several years. M.
Harper said that there is a bill before the House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee, HB 502, that
the board has been working on in coordination wth
representatives of the optonetry profession to resolve sone of
the problens between the statutes governing both professions.
The bill does not seemto be making nuch progress, he coment ed.
M. Harper expressed his desire to remain on the board even
though the board is scheduled to be sunsetted this year. He
said he would like to see this issue through because he believes
it is inmportant to continue to do licensing even if it is not
wi th the board.

Nunber 1444

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Larry E. Harper, the governor's appointee to
the Board of D spensing Opticians, and to recommend that his
nom nation be forwarded to a joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, Larry E. Harper's nomnation was
forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Number 1404

CHAIR WLSON comrented that there were two individuals, Carol J.
Schaeffer and Dana L. Brown being nom nated for appointnent to
boards that were not on |ine. She asked the nenbers to | ook at
Dana L. Brown's credentials and asked if the commttee is
confortable enough with the information provided to reconmend
t hat her namne be forwarded to the joint session for
consi derati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he believes this is an inportant
position and it is incunbent upon a nomnee to be available to
the commttee. Since the nomnee is not available and no notice
was provided as to the reason for her absence before the
commttee, Representative Gatto stated he would be reluctant to
endorse the individual.

CHAIR WLSON told the nmenbers that sone commttees only | ook at
the credentials and do not have the noni nees cone before the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- May 4, 2004



commi ttee. She also commented that as a mdwife, M. Brown
coul d be delivering a baby.

CHAIR WLSON noted that Carol J. Schaeffer from Kotzebue who is
a nomnee for the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent is
the other individual who is not on |line.

Number 1328
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA commented that she knows Ms. Schaeffer.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA noved that the House Heal th, Education and
Soci al Servi ces St andi ng Comm ttee has revi ened t he
qualifications of Carol J. Schaeffer, the governor's appointee
to the Board of Education and Early Developnent, and to
reconmend that her nom nation be forwarded to a joint session
for consideration. There being no objection, Carol J.
Schaeffer's nomnation was forwarded to the joint session for
consi derati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he intended to object.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Kapsner, WlIf,
Cissna, and WIlson voted in favor of forwarding Carol J.
Schaeffer's nomnation to the joint session for consideration.
Representative Gatto voted against it. Therefore, Carol J.
Schaeffer's nomnation was forwarded to the joint session for
consideration by a vote of 4-1.

Number 1234

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noved that the House Health, Education
and Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee has reviewed the
qualifications of Dana Brown, the governor's appointee to the
Board of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves, and to recommend that
her nomi nati on be forwarded to a joint session for
consi deration.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the information on M.
Brown is dated 1999 and addressed to Governor Know es. Ther e
has been sone editing to this letter and there is a nore current
resunme attached, he said.

Nunber 1138

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- May 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said that the reason he is objecting is that
this is sinply a copy of a 1999 |letter from Boards and
Commi ssions in the Governor's Ofice. He agreed with Chair
Wl son that Ms. Brown could be delivering a baby.

CHAIR WLSON read portions of Ms. Brown's letter into the record
as foll ows:

| have been involved with mdwifery and mdwfery
politics since 1984 and am keening aware of the
direct-entry mdwives into the minstream nedica
system so that famlies have a safe and cost effective
choice in the care they receive in the child-bearing
years. | am dedicated to the preservation of
mdw fery as | know it, to the apprenticeship nodel of
education of mdw ves, and to the consuner protection
for the Al aska public.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that Ms. Brown is co-author of
the Practical Skills Guide for Mdw fery textbook. He told the
menbers that he has no objection to Ms. Brown's appoi nt nent.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF renoved his objection. He told the nenbers
that he believes the dated letter reflects a |l ack of interest.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that Ms. Brown is probably busy
del i vering babi es.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA comrented that Ms. Brown may not be in an
urban setting where she has access to a conputer

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that Ms. Brown's resune is excellent,
but a cover letter that is that old | ooks strange.

There being no further objection, Dana L. Brown's nom nation was
forwarded to the joint session for consideration.

Nunber 1008
CHAIR WLSON announced that the conmttee is recessed to the
call of the chair at 4:00 p.m The neeting was reconvened at

6:30 p.m

SB 219- OFFENSES AGAI NST UNBORN CHI LDREN

Nunmber 0953

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- May 4, 2004



CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO. 219, "An Act relating to offenses agai nst unborn
children.™

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what the next commttee of referral
is for SB 219

CHAI R W LSON responded the House Judiciary Standing Commttee is
the next commttee of referral.

Nunmber 0898

SENATOR FRED DYSON, sponsor of SB 219, presented the bill and
answered questions from the nmenbers. He explained that 29 other
states and the federal governnent have passed |egislation that
protects unborn children. Al aska's attorney general provided
himwith a ruling that the federal law only applies if an unborn
child is harned during the commssion of a federal crime or
federal jurisdiction, he said. For exanple, if a crinme were
commtted on a mlitary base. He added that nost crine that
takes place in Alaska is prosecuted under state law, so this
| egislation puts into state |aw that which has beconme a part of
federal |aw. Senator Dyson told the nmenbers that SB 219 goes
t hrough all of Alaska's statutes that refer to nurder,
mansl| aughter, or assault and adds the unborn child provision.

SENATOR DYSON told of an incident that occurred in the 1970s
where police in California got into the wong apartnent around
dusk on a drug bust, and a |ady cane out of her bedroom carrying
her Kirby vacuum cleaner and a policeman thought it was a
shotgun and shot her. It killed the baby. It was found that no
charges could be made on the crinme against the child because
there was nothing in the statutes, he expl ai ned. Senat or Dyson
said that the California legislature passed the fastest act,
four and a half days, ever made in the state. The |aw nade the
killing of an unborn child a crine. There have been two court
chal | enges, he added. Oher states have gone on to pass simlar
| aws.

SENATOR DYSON told the nenbers that the bill has been witten

carefully to exclude the killing of an unborn child during an
abortion or if a child is damaged or killed during a nedical
procedure. There is also exclusion of a woman who kills or
damages her child because of sonething she was doing. Senat or

Dyson added that he believes that is reprehensi bl e behavior, but
did not want a provision in this piece of |legislation which
woul d allow sone zealots to go around trying to arrest a woman

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- May 4, 2004



who s snoking [cigarettes] or drinking. Senator Dyson
commented that sonme of the nenbers have worked with him on the
issue of fetal alcohol syndrone (FAS) and the idea of

involuntary commtnent, but this bill excludes a woman from
bei ng prosecuted for anything that she does that is |egal and
that damages a child. This bill has very specific |anguage

directed toward a crinme against a woman who is bearing a child,
he sai d.

Number 0694

CHAI R WLSON asked Senator Dyson to clarify that this bill would
only address instances of illegal activity.

SENATOR DYSON replied yes, that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if he is saying the bill addresses
only federal felonies or m sdeneanors.

SENATOR DYSON responded that the new federal |aw addresses that

I ssue. This legislation would take all of the state statutes
related to nurder, manslaughter, and assault charges and adds
unborn child to it. He comented that the bill very nuch

parallels federal law, but is a bit different since it is being
inserted into Al aska stat utes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO posed a hypothetical exanple of a nother,
who desperately wants her child, is speeding and is in an
accident that results in the child s death. He asked if that
woul d be considered an attack on the unborn since the nother was
commtting a crine.

SENATOR DYSON replied that mght be considered negligent
hom ci de, and referred to |anguage on page 2, line 21 [through
23] .

CHAIR WLSON commented that it would be considered a class B
felony. She said she does not know what a class B felony is.

SENATOR DYSON referred to Section 6, page 5, where it outlines
sonme sentencing guidelines. An individual convicted of first-
degree nurder could be sentenced to five to 99 years, second-
degree nurder sentence could be 10 to 99 years, second-degree
murder sentence could be 20 years but not nore than 99 years
when the nurder of the child is under 16 years ol d.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- May 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if that is in addition to the
penalty for commtting a crinme against the nother.

SENATOR DYSON replied that there will be an additional charge
over the penalty against the nother. Sonetimes judges wll |et
the penalty be concurrent, and sonetines it is supplenental.

CHAIR WLSON asked if she could get clarification on
Representative Gatto's question. If a nother is speeding and
her child dies, could the nother go to prison for that crine,
she asked.

Nunber 0457
SENATOR DYSON responded that he thinks she coul d.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to page 2, line[s 18 and 19],
whi ch says:

...recklessly causes the death of an wunborn child
under circunstances not anmounting to nurder of an
unborn child.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER conment ed that taking too hot of sauna or
going to a tanning salon could be considered reckl ess.

SENATOR DYSON pointed out that on [page 2, line 31] there is
| anguage that provides that the |aw does not apply if anything
the woman has done that is |egal. Under this bill penalties
would only be incurred when the nother was doing sonme illega
activity which results in damage to the child.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER comment ed | i ke speedi ng.

SENATOR DYSON said that he believes it would be very unlikely
that a woman woul d be prosecuted in these circunstances.

Number 0375

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that if a woman is speeding,
there is an accident, and a subsequent mscarriage, then the
wonman woul d be guilty of mansl aughter.

SENATOR DYSON responded that in those circunstances it would be

crimnally negligent hom cide. He added that this bill is
structured to address a third person who assaults the nother

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- May 4, 2004



and in addition to the assault on her causes death or danage to
t he unborn child.

Nunber 0311

CHAIR WLSON asked if it says that anywhere in the bill. Wuld
t he not her be exenpt from prosecution.

SENATOR DYSON replied that the nother is exenpt if it is a lega
abortion, nedical procedure, or legal activity on her part.

CHAIR WLSON asked what the difference in penalty is between
mans| aughter and crimnally negligent hom cide. One is a class
A felony and the other is a class B fel ony.

SENATOR DYSON pointed out that if a nother is speeding and as a
result of an accident kills her three-year-old child, it is an

illegal activity. This bill says it is a crime regardless of
whether the child is born or unborn. A wanted human being is
still being killed, he said. An unwanted child is in a free

fire zone at this tine in our culture, Senator Dyson added.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he does not want to penalize a
not her who in the case of an accident kills her child. However,
according to the statute it would be required because the wonman
comm tted mansl aughter.

SENATOR DYSON replied that it is not nmanslaughter unless it is

i ntentional . It would be considered negligence, he said. The
point is that the negligence that kills an unborn child under
this law would be the sane penalty as killing a child after
birth.

CHAIR WLSON asked what the difference in penalty would be. | f
a nmother only had a three year old in the car and the child
di ed, what would be the penalty, she asked.

SENATOR DYSON replied that she could be charged with negligent
hom ci de. In response to Chair W son request for
clarification, he said it is possible the nother would be sent
to prison.

Number 0057
WS KELLER, Staff to Senator Fred Dyson, Al aska State

Legislature, testified on SB 219 and answered question from the
committee. He told the nenbers that the crimnally negligent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- May 4, 2004



hom ci de standard carries a high standard of intent. That is
why the nenbers do not hear of charges being brought against
parents in cases of a death of a child, he added. He reiterated
that there nust be crimnal intent involved.

TAPE 04-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, line 26. He asked for
clarification that this provision wuld exclude alcohol or
tobacco, but would include marijuana or prescription nedicines
that the nother did not have a prescription for. Representative
Seaton asked if using illegal substances or nedication wthout a
prescription that causes the death or injury of an unborn child
woul d be considered a class C fel ony.

SENATOR DYSON agreed that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that all of the |aw preceding
page 2, line 24, is nodified by applicability. The only charges
that would be brought against the nother is illegal activity
that resulted in the death or injury of the unborn child. He
said that as Representative Seaton pointed out alcohol is not
illegal even though it conceivably has the worst possible effect

on unborn chil dren. He told the nenmbers that he would love to
make al cohol consunption during pregnancy illegal.
Number 0145

CHAI R WLSON preferenced her comrent by saying that she does not
know what current |aw dictates. She posed a hypot hetical case
of a nother who uses cocaine and because of that use the baby
dies or is born cocai ne-dependent, has seizures, and dies. She
asked what the effect of this bill wll be in a case like that.

Number 0225

SENATOR DYSON replied that under current |aw he believes that
because the state has not recogni zed the personhood of an unborn
child then any actions against an unborn child have no penalty.
That is the reason so nany states and the federal governnent
have provided for this kind of protection for a wanted unborn
child, he explained.

SENATOR DYSON comrented in response to Representative Gatto's

earlier statenment, that he held one of his foster children
nonents after it was born with a pulse rate of 235 from cocai ne.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -32- May 4, 2004



He shared that his daughter has adopted that child. Senat or
Dyson said he also has a child who suffers from Fetal Al cohol
Affects which is a lifelong struggle. Senator Dyson told the
menbers that for the past eight years he thought very seriously
about these issues. He said as the menbers know, there are now
sone involuntary commtnent procedures in place for those who
are in danger of harm ng thenselves or others. Now there are
hundreds of lives that are being saved by getting those folks in
front of a magistrates for involuntary conmtnent, he added. He
told the conmmittee that there is one woman in Al aska that has
had nine full-blowm FAS kids in a row The state will spend an
average of $1 million on every one of those kids by the tinme
they are 18 years old, Senator Dyson conmented. It is a huge
probl em he acknow edged, but chose not to address that in this
bill. Senator Dyson told the commttee it is an issue he cares
very deeply about.

Nunber 0347

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA conmmented that this body has a difficult
time addressing the needs of children who are born. She asked
what the notivation is to focus on this, and how does this solve
a problem Many problens are due to the fact that the state
does not provide the services that are needed, she said.

SENATOR DYSON responded that he rejects the line of logic that
says this should not be done because the legislature is not
doing all it can and should do in other areas. Mich nore should
be done in other areas, he agreed.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whom the state is trying to get in
this | egislation.

SENATOR DYSON replied that this legislation is intended to
establish that the killing of a wanted child is the wong thing
to do. He told Representative Cissna that if that concept is
troubl esonme to her, he cannot hel p her.

Number 0435

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA responded that the term unborn child is
i naccurate. It is a fetus, she said.

SENATOR DYSON told the conmittee that it has been 50 years since
he took Latin, but he recalls that the term "fetus" in Latin
means "unborn child." Taking a human being and dehumani zing it
and denigrating it by using different words to describe it is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- May 4, 2004



part of the strategy of those who have oppressed people down
through the ages, he said. He reiterated that is a strategy
used to deny someone protection that is given to everyone else
under the |aw, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA stated that Senator Dyson has gone over
the |ine.

CHAI R W LSON asked the nenbers to rennin calm
Number 0510

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented to Representative Cissna that he
has westled with the sane issue about an unborn child that

troubl es her. He questioned when a child should be recognized
as a human bei ng. Should it only occur after the child cones
out of the birth canal, he asked. It is hard to draw the line,

Representative Gatto stated.

CHAIR WLSON asked the mnmenbers to restrict discussion to the
issues of the bill. She said she is sure the issue of when life
begins will not be settled here. Chair WIson asked the nenbers
to focus on the intent of the bill where a crinme is commtted
and as a result an unborn baby is killed, and the individual who
commtted the crine needs to be punished for it. She asked if
there are any uni ntended consequences that need to be exam ned.

Number 0615

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that it has been determ ned
that protection of certain species of animals is inportant. He
told the nmenbers that it is strange to him that human beings
woul d not be included. Representative Coghill applauds the
efforts of Senator Dyson in putting this legislation forth. It

is inmportant to define what it valued in our society.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report CSSB 219(JUD)am 23-
LS1116\I1. A, out of conmttee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

Number 0684

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA obj ect ed. She told the nenbers that many
words are used that meant sonmething different in the |anguage of
its origin and that now means sonething very different. An act
relating to offenses against a fetus is the beginning of a
di scussi on. Representative Cissna stated that the people she

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- May 4, 2004



represents see this as an attack on wonen and choices. She told
the nmenbers that she adores children and cares for children just
as the sponsor does. This bill is an assault on wonen's right
to choose, she stated.

SENATOR DYSON apol ogi zed to Representative C ssnha. He told the
menbers that he knows her and knows how caring she is. Senator
Dyson said he reacted in response to previous testinony he has
heard on the sanme |ine of thought, and responded with nore vigor
than was necessary. He reiterated his apology to Representative
Ci ssna and said that she has been a good caring exanple to all
who know her.

SENATOR DYSON clarified that this bill is designed to offer sone
protection to unborn children. There was sone inplication that
this is intended to undo the Roe v. Wade decision. He explained
that he has a half a dozen |egal decisions from state suprene
courts and a couple of legal scholars which say this law wl
not have any inpact on that decision. Senator Dyson offered to
make those decisions available to the nenbers. This |legislation
wi Il not be used to undo Roe v. Wade, he stated.

CHAIR WLSON explained that she believes the problem occurred
when there was a m sstatenent made when Senator Dyson responded
to Representative G ssnha's question. Senator Dyson referred to
"unwanted children” in his response, however, Chair WIson said,
she believes he intended to say "wanted children.™

SENATOR DYSON replied that is possible.
Nunber 0919

KAREN VOSBURGH, Executive Director, Alaska Right to Life,
testified in support of SB 2109. She told the nmenbers that she
not only speaks for herself but for the 50,000 pro-life people
in her database. She thanked Senator Dyson for his work on this
| egi sl ati on. Ms. Vosburgh explained that she has sent Senator
Dyson over 1,000 [signatures] of individuals who have signed
petitions supporting this Ilegislation, and has another 200
[signatures] that she as not yet forwarded to him In response
to Representative Cissna's coment that there are a |lot of
people in her district that are pro-choice, she shared that
Al aska Right to Life's data base shows 691 people in district 22
[ Representative Cissna's district] that are pro-life.

Number 0979

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- May 4, 2004



M5. VOSBURGH said the federal Unborn Victins of Violence Act was
signed into law in April 1, 2004. The Unborn Victins of
Vi ol ence Act recognizes that when crinmnal attacks or injures a
pregnant worman and injures or kills both her and her wunborn
child, that crinme has clainmed two human victins. Prior to the
enactnent of this law an unborn child was not recognized as a
victimwth respect to violent crines. As of March 31, 2004, 31
states now have |aws where homcide charges can be brought
against an individual for the unlawful Kkilling of an unborn
child or fetus in a state crime, she said. Ms. Vosburgh
explained that it is well established that unborn victins |aws
or fetal homcide laws do not conflict with the U S. Suprene
Court's pro-abortion decree in Roe v. Wde. The state |aws
nmenti oned above have no effect on |egal abortion. Cri m nal
def endants have brought many |egal challenges to the states'
unborn victim |l aws based on Roe v. Wade and other constitutional
argunents, but all such challenges have been rejected by state
and federal courts, she said. She offered to fax copies of
t hose decisions to the conmttee.

M5. VOSBURGH told the nenbers that in U'S  Congress sone
opponents objected to the bill's [Unborn Victins of Violence
Act] recognition of the child in utero as a nenber of the human
famly. Yet in July 25, 2000 the U S. House of Representatives

passed on a vote of 417 to O a bill that contained the sane
definition of a child in utero, and that enbodies the sane basic
| egal principle, M. Vosburgh stated. That bill, the Innocent

Child Protection Act, says that no state or federal authority
may carryout a death sentence on a woman while she carries a
child in utero. A child in utero neans a nenber of the species
honosapi ens at any stage of developnent that is carried in the
wonb.

M5. VOSBURGH told the nenbers that a My 2003 Newsweek poll
found that 84 percent of Anericans believe that if both a
pregnant not her and unborn baby are nurdered the offender should

be charged with two counts of nurder, not just one. The | aw
Unborn Victins of Violence Act and the single victim amendnent
are being considered in Congress. Sharon Rocha, whose daughter

Laci and unborn grandson, Connor, were nurdered, wote:

...that adoption of such a single victim amendnment
woul d be a painful blow to those |ike ne, who are |eft
alive after a two victim crine because Congress would
be saying that Connor and other innocent unborn
victinmns like himare not really victins at all. Qur

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 36- May 4, 2004



grandson did live, he had a nane, he was |oved, and
his [ife was violently taken from him

M5. VOSBURGH summarized that what Sharon Rocha said was very
pr of ound.

Nunber 1165

CAREN ROBI NSON, Al aska Wnen's Lobby, testified on SB 219 and
answered questions from the nenbers. The focus of the Al aska
Wnen's Lobby is to pronote the advancenment and defense of
interests and rights of wonen, children, and famlies of Al aska.
She said that she knows that sone of the nost inportant policy
decisions are nmade in the |ast days of the session and asked the
menbers to think long and hard about this policy decision. The
Al aska Wnen's Lobby supports the right for a woman to have a
famly and any crimnal act that robs her of a hope for a future
child is tragic and intolerable. Ms. Robinson said that there
is no question that conmitting violence against a pregnant wonan
is serious crine and it deserves a serious punishnent. Those
who have worked in the field know that donestic violence often
begins or gets worse when a wonan is pregnant. The 1 eading
cause of death during pregnancy is hom cide. Yet SB 219 does
nothing to protect wonmen from such violence, nor does it inpose
nore severe punishment for committing violence against a
pregnant woman regardless of the harm to the baby she is
carrying.

M5. ROBI NSON pointed out that right now it is a msdeneanor to
beat a woman, pregnant or not. She urged the nenbers to provide
real solutions to problenms of violence against pregnant wonen.
The only way to protect an unborn victim of violence is to
protect the nother.

Nunber 1264

M5. ROBI NSON provided a case scenario that she asked the nenbers
to think about. There is a situation where a young wonan is
married and thinks she is pregnant. She does her own pregnancy
test. She has a young husband who has been violent before, but
the police have never been call ed. She waits a week, goes and

does another pregnancy test herself and finds that she is
pregnant. She tells her husband, who then goes in a rage, beats
her, kicks her in the stomach and she calls the police, who cone
and arrest himon a m sdeneanor charge. She goes to the shelter
that night and has a mscarriage. [Under this bill] he would be
charged with nurder. She urged the nmenbers to think about the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -37- May 4, 2004



policy decision they are naking. Ms. Robinson said she thinks
it is inmportant to get the Departnent of Law or others to cone
over and talk about the serious ramfications of this bill.
There needs to be enhancenent [of protections] against pregnant
wonen who get beaten primarily by their husbands or partners,
she sai d.

Number 1320

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF pointed to page 3, lines 14 and 15 which
says:

(1) by words or other conduct intentionally places a
pregnant woman in fear of death of her unborn child;
or

REPRESENTATIVE WOLF said that in the scenario M. Robinson
described if a husband never lays a hand on his wfe, however,
he tells her he wants her to have an abortion, he can be charged
with a class A m sdeneanor. He said he is troubled by that
| anguage.

Nunber 1419

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that he was very interested in
what Ms. Robi nson was sayi ng. He said he was not clear whether
she was suggesting including the sane penalties against the
unborn and meke it equal for the nother. O is her intention to
reduce penalties for the wunborn and meke it equal for the
not her.

M5. ROBINSON said she believes it is inportant to enhance
penal ti es against those who beat pregnant wonen, and enhanced
sentencing in donestic violence.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO surm sed that M. Robinson would like to
see a separate bill that increases penalties for abused wonen.

M5. ROBINSON comrented that she was saying there needs to be
enhanced penalties wth respect to pregnant wonen. The
perspective that is being taken in SB 219 is the wong way to
get there, she said. Unfortunately, it is very conmmon for this
kind of crinme to occur as a result of donmestic violence and it
is usually the husband or boy friend who comrits the crine.

Nunber 1515

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 38- May 4, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed that there are sone good | egal
guestions. He said he believes Representative WIf concern with

respect to sone of the |anguage should be addressed. He
recoomended that the conmttee allow the House Judiciary
Standing Comm ttee address these point. He said he would Iike

to vote on this bill
Number 1541

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that ot her than the problem
Representative Wl f identified in the |anguage, all of the other
problenms with the bill are addressed with the |anguage on page
3, line[s] 26 [and 27] which says:

(3) are otherwise legal that are commtted by a
pregnant woman agai nst herself or her unborn child.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee address this problemw th respect to the scenario of a
pregnant wonman who is speeding or not speeding and what happens.
The sane wording on the bottom of page 2 could al so be revi ewed
and consideration should be given to renoving those words so
that there are no unintended consequences, he added. There
would not have to be very nmany wonen sent to prison for
sonething that is unintended to distort the purpose of the bill,
Represent ati ve Seaton st at ed.

Nunber 1629

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Coghill, Seaton

Gatto, WIf, and WIson voted in favor of CSSB 219(JUD)am
Representative Cissna voted against it. Therefore, CSSB

219(JUD) am was reported out of the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmttee by a vote of 5-1.

CHAIR WLSON asked Senator Dyson to look at the concerns
mentioned by the nenbers and talk with the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conmittee chairnman to ensure no unintended consequences
occur.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF al so asked for Senator Dyson to | ook closely
at the | anguage he pointed out.

SENATOR DYSON t hanked the committee. He commented that Senator

GQuess and he have worked together to try to increase the
penalties for violence against wonen and donestic violence.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 39- May 4, 2004



However, those changes would not fit under this title and there
were not enough votes [in the other body] for a title change, he

expl ai ned. Senator Guess and he have agreed to work on this
issue during the interimand bring back a bill on it next year,
he sai d.

ADJ OURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 7:15 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -40- May 4, 2004



